PERRY COUNTY COUNCIL BUDGET WORKSHOP MINUTES

September 19-21, 2023

The Perry County Council met on the above date starting at 8:00 a.m.at on September 19, 2023 as was duly advertised. Council members in attendance were President David Etienne (DE), Keith Huck (KH), Earla Williams (EW), Paul Malone (PM), Stan Goffinet (SG), Kelli Harding (Kelli) and Gale Garner (GG). Auditor Kristinia Hammack was also present along with the Auditor's Office First Deputy, Kelli Wilgus and Lead Financial Deputy, Kimberly Lasher. All 7 were present on Tuesday, September 19, 2023.

All 7 were present on Wednesday September 20, 2023.

Earla Williams was not present in the morning session on Thursday, September 21, 2023.

The Budget Workshop was livestreamed from the North Annex Building.

Each morning the meeting opened with the Pledge of Allegiance.

DE welcomed everyone to the Budget 2024 Workshop.

Discussion began regarding the proposed 2024 Budget, that the Max Levy Funds needed to be reduced by \$543,120 based on the Form 4B. Auditor Hammack advised that the Form 4B numbers did not have the requested amounts from Perry County Memorial Hospital for Ambulance Service in the amount of \$400,605 and The William Tell Senior Citizens in the amount of \$7,000. The amount entered in the Form 4B was the amounts they were awarded in 2023, which is a difference of \$187,605. With these additions the amount to be cut from the Max Levy Funds increased to \$730,725.

In addition, Auditor Hammack pointed out a few other changes, the animal shelter contract amount was entered in the Form 4B as an expense of \$75,000 and it should only be \$35,000. Also, the consulting fees entered in the Form 4B as an expense for the General Fund can be moved to the Riverboat Fund. This would result in \$50,000 be removed from the Max Levy Funds, leaving the amount to cut from the Max Levy Funds at \$680,725.

The Council then reviewed the budget book which had each fund broke down.

FIRST REVIEW:

• General, Clerk of Circuit Court, requested amount \$238,640. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$221,940.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by KH. Motion carried 7-0.

• General, County Auditor, requested amount \$248,743. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$248,393.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by EW. Motion carried 7-0.

• General, County Treasurer, requested amount \$170,920. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$170,370.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by SG. Motion carried 7-0.

• General, County Recorder, requested amount \$148,671. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$146,521.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by SG. Motion carried 7-0.

• General, County Sheriff, requested amount \$895,449. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$890,549.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by EW. Motion carried 7-0.

• General, County Surveyor, requested amount \$12,827. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$12,427. There was discussion of moving these expenses from the General Fund to the Surveyors Perpetuation Fund as its annual revenue could support these expenses.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, remove them from the General Fund and add to the Surveyors Perpetuation Fund, seconded by SG. Motion carried 7-0.

• General, County Coroner, requested amount \$115,283. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$59,977.

SG made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by KH. Motion carried 7-0.

• General, County Assessor, requested amount \$155,842. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$153,892.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by KH. Motion carried 7-0.

• General, Prosecuting Attorney, requested amount \$90,417. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$89,717.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by EW. Motion carried 7-0.

• General, County Coop Extension Services, requested amount \$155,502. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$154,502.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by PM. Motion carried 7-0.

• General, County Veterans Service Officer, requested amount \$46,563. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$46,413.

SG made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by KH. Motion carried 7-0.

• General, County Council, requested amount \$50,170. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$49,370.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by GG. Motion carried 7-0.

- General, County Election Board, requested amount \$88,330.
 - Discussion on the need for the election app provided by An Island LLC.
 Questions were asked of Clerk Roark. Kelli stated that she feels that this is a want and not a need.

Kelli made a motion to remove the expense of \$4,000 for the election app, motion died with no second.

PM made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by KH. Motion carried 6-1.

- General, County Commissioners requested amount \$2,357,207.
 - Discussion to add in the animal welfare amount given last year in the amount of \$5,000. Auditor Hammack stated they did not request any funding this year, nor did Ride Solutions.
 - O Discussion on the Ambulance Service request of \$400,605, decrease that to what was awarded last year, \$215,000.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total of \$2,163,252, seconded by PM. Motion carried 7-0.

• General, Animal Shelter requested amount \$35,000.

KH made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by SG. Motion carried 6-1.

• General, Planning and Zoning, requested amount \$18,844. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$14,057.

SG made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by KH. Motion carried 7-0.

• General, Courthouse, requested amount \$115,491. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$114,191.

SG made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by KH. Motion carried 7-0.

- General, Circuit Court requested amount \$714,449.
 - O Judge Goffinet was present and presented her budget and stated that she was ok with paying the raises she presented for her staff out of the SAPS Fund to take that expense off the General Fund. Judge Goffinet also read Indiana Codes that state that she can mandate her request for use of the SAPS fund if necessary.
 - O There was also discussion of the additional \$5,000 supplement that is paid from General to the Judge, asking if it was mandated by the state. Judge Goffinet stated it is not mandated, but is something that has been given for some time. Kelli stated that she feels in fairness that if we are going to give it to the Lucy, that Karen and Samantha should get it as well. Judge Goffinet replied that she had asked for it in years past for Karen and it was denied.

KH made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by PM. Motion carried 4-3.

• General, Civil Defense, requested amount \$166,410. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$151,910.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by EW. Motion carried 7-0.

• General, Jail, requested amount \$705,790. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$700,990.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by EW. Motion carried 7-0.

• General, IV-D Child Support, requested amount \$125,802. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$124,752.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by EW. Motion carried 7-0.

• General, Soil Conservation, requested amount \$52,235. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$51,235.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by SG. Motion carried 7-0.

• General, Parks and Recreation, requested amount \$161,699. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$157,499.

SG made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by PM. Motion carried 7-0.

• Health, requested amount \$305,344. Reductions were made coming to a new total of \$302,044.00

PM made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by KH. Motion carried 7-0.

• Cumulative Bridge, requested amount \$386,900.

PM made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by SG. Motion carried 7-0.

• Reassessment, requested amount \$128,626. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$122,136.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by PM. Motion carried 7-0.

• Cumulative Capital Development, requested amount \$386,500. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$266,500.

SG made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by GG. Motion carried 7-0.

• LIT Special Legislation, requested amount \$65,000. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$65,000.

PM made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by EW. Motion carried 7-0.

- Clerks Record Perpetuation, requested amount \$2,650.
 - There was discussion of moving the expense of the part-time clerical position from the General Fund to the Clerks Records Perpetuation Fund as its annual revenue could support these expenses. With this additional expense the new expense total is \$18,650.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by GG. Motion carried 7-0.

• Sales Disclosure, requested amount \$4,827. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$4,326.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by SG. Motion carried 7-0.

• Emergency Planning/Right to Know, requested amount \$3,767.

Kelli made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by GG. Motion carried 7-0.

• Enhanced Access requested amount \$16,490.

SG made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by EW. Motion carried 7-0.

• Identification Security Protection, requested amount \$6,400.

KH made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by PM. Motion carried 7-0.

• Local Road and Street, requested amount \$420,000.

EW made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by PM. Motion carried 7-0.

• LIT-Public Safety, County Sheriff Share, requested amount \$342,765. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$257,043.

Kelli made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by EW. Motion carried 7-0.

• LIT-Public Safety, County Commissioners Share, requested amount \$641,500. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$191,000.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by GG. Motion carried 7-0.

• LIT-Public Safety, County Jail Share, requested amount \$366,271. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$296,747.

Kelli made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by EW. Motion carried 7-0.

• MVH Restricted—Maintenance and Repairs, requested amount \$778,595.

SG made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by GG. Motion carried 7-0.

• MVH Restricted—General and Undistributed Expenses, requested amount \$530,460.

PM made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by GG. Motion carried 7-0.

• MVH—HWY Administration, requested amount \$128,783.

GG made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by DE. Motion carried 7-0.

• MVH—Maintenance and Repairs, requested amount \$398,165. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$387,715.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by EW. Motion carried 7-0.

• MVH—General and Undistributed Expenses, requested amount \$964,720. Reductions were made coming to a new expense total of \$963,970.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by EW. Motion carried 7-0.

• Platbook requested amount \$12,316.

KH made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by GG. Motion carried 7-0.

• Riverboat requested amount \$29,300.

Kelli made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by SG. Motion carried 7-0.

• Sex and Violent Offender Admin. requested amount \$1,400.

SG made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by KH. Motion carried 7-0.

• Supplemental Public Defender, requested amount \$3,650.

KH made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by PM. Motion carried 7-0.

• County Surveyor Perpetuation, requested amount \$6,500. County Council approved moving expenses from the General Fund in the amount of \$12,827 to the Surveyors Perpetuation Fund as its annual revenue could support these expenses.

The new expense total is \$18,851.

PM made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by SG. Motion carried 7-0.

• Co. Elected Official Training, Clerk of Circuit Court, requested amount \$1,000.

EW made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by KH. Motion carried 7-0.

• Co. Elected Official Training, Auditor, requested amount \$1,000.

EW made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by KH. Motion carried 7-0.

• Co. Elected Official Training, Treasurer, requested amount \$1,000.

EW made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by KH. Motion carried 7-0.

• Co. Elected Official Training, Recorder, requested amount \$1,000.

EW made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by KH. Motion carried 7-0.

• Co. Elected Official Training, County Surveyor, requested amount \$900.

EW made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by KH. Motion carried 7-0.

• Statewide 911, requested amount \$283,000.

GG made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by SG. Motion carried 7-0.

• LIT-PSAP, requested amount \$345,587.

KH made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by PM. Motion carried 7-0.

• Supplemental Adult Probation (SAPS), requested amount \$103,151.

EW made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by PM. Motion carried 7-0.

• Jury Fee, requested amount \$3,000.

EW made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by PM. Motion carried 7-0.

• Pretrial Diversion, requested amount \$29,100.

PM made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by EW. Motion carried 6-0, (KH stepped out).

• Surplus Surtax & Wheel, requested amount \$225,000.

GG made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by Kelli. Motion carried 6-0, (KH stepped out).

• Jail Operation Fund, requested amount \$307,836.

KH made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by SG. Motion carried 7-0.

• Inmate Housing, requested amount \$39,894.

SG made a motion to approve expense total as is, seconded by KH. Motion carried 7-0.

Discussion was had regarding wages. Kelli stated that she would like to see us keep the 2023 wages then see where we are financially in the 4th quarter and possibly give a stipend. PM made a motion to cut the pauper attorney budgeted amount by \$175,000, seconded by KH, died 3-3 (EW was not present).

PM made a motion to except raises as requested, seconded by KH, died 3-3 (EW was not present).

SG made a motion to give a 3% raise to all employees, excluding Commissioners and Council, seconded by Kelli, died 3-3 (EW was not present).

PM made a motion to give 5% raises to Elected Officials, excluding Commissioners and Council, and a 10% raise to all clerical employees. The definition of Clerical employees was

questioned, and restated as all employees non-elected. This motion was seconded by KH, passed 4-2 (EW was not present).

SECOND REVIEW:

• General, Clerk of Circuit Court, first amended amount \$221,940. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$206,325.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by PM. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• General, County Auditor, first amended amount \$248,393. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$240,490.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by GG. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• General, County Treasurer, first amended amount \$170,370. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$162,575.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by EW. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• General, County Recorder, first amended amount \$146,521. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$138,424.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by GG. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• General, County Sheriff, first amended amount \$890,549. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$867,892.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by SG. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• General, County Coroner, first amended amount \$59,977. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$62,593.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by EW. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• General, County Assessor, first amended amount \$153,892. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$145,833.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by GG. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• General, Prosecuting Attorney, first amended amount \$89,717. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$88,699.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by EW. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• General, County Coop Extension Services, first amended amount \$154,502. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$156,370.

GG made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by KH. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• General, County Veterans Service Officer, first amended amount \$46,413. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$44,525.

GG made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by KH. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• General, County Council, first amended amount \$49,370. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$46,892.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by GG. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• General, County Commissioners, first amended amount \$2,163,252. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$2,160,073.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by EW. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• General, Circuit Court requested amount \$714,449. Judge Goffinet called in and made reductions in her budget expenses from the general fund. She was willing to pay what she could out of the SAPS fund.

With these changes the new expense total is \$692,432.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by PM. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• General, Civil Defense, first amended amount \$151,910. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$173,820.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by PM. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• General, Jail, first amended amount \$700,990. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$706,663.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by KH. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• General, IV-D Child Support first amended amount \$124,752. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$123,667.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by GG. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• General, Soil Conversation, first amended amount \$51,235. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$51,450.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by KH. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• General, Parks and Recreation, first amended amount \$157,499. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$156,844.

GG made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by KH. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

- Health requested amount \$305,344. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$311,360.
 - There was discussion in regards to the grants that the health department has and additional wages are paid out of that on top of the wages paid from Grants.
 With the 10% raises, plus additional wages paid out of grants. These are the totals:

Nurse Supervisor: \$64,578; Office Manager: \$48,065; Sanitarian: \$55,464; Public Nurse: \$57,792. These wages include \$2820 from the Health First Indiana Grant, which has not yet been approved.

It was discussed that looking at these wages the Office Manager wages are higher than Elected Officials salary.

PM made a motion to decrease the Health Dept. raises from 10% to 5%, seconded by GG. Motion carried 5-0-2. Kelli and EW abstained.

GG made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by KH. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• LIT-Public Safety, County Sheriff Share, first amended amount \$257,043. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$194,196.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by GG. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• LIT-Public Safety, County Jail Share, first amended amount \$296,747. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$291,381.

GG made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by KH. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• MVH Restricted—HWY Administration, requested amount \$77,439. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$81,116.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by PM. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• MVH Restricted—Maintenance and Repairs, requested amount \$778,595. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$786,576.

EW made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by SG. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• MVH Restricted—General and Undistributed Expenses, requested amount \$530,460. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$547,586.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by PM. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• MVH—HWY Administration, first amended amount \$125,233. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$124,747.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by GG. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• MVH—Maintenance and Repairs, first amended amount \$387,715. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$401,048.

KH made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by GG. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• MVH—General and Undistributed Expenses, first amended amount \$963,970. Wage changes were made coming to a new expense total of \$964,083.

SG made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by KH. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

• Supplemental Adult Probation (SAPS), requested amount \$103,151. Judge Goffinet called in and made reductions in her budget expenses from the general fund. She was willing to pay what she could out of the SAPS fund.

With these changes the new expense total is \$113,046.

PM made a motion to approve new expense total, seconded by KH. Motion carried 6-0-1. Kelli abstained.

At 6:00 PM on September 21, 2023 Auditor Hammack asked the County Council to give her time to review the numbers and contact Robert Norris with the Department of Local Government Finance to review these numbers and see exactly where we are with the max levy limit and compare the budgeted expenditures to our estimated revenue. She stated she would then bring this information back to the County Council at the September 28, 2023 meeting. Council was in agreeance.

Minutes approved this 19 th day of October, 2023.	
	President, Perry County Council

Minutes prepared by: Kristinia L. Hammack, Perry County Auditor